
Jenny Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Fax : Bideford (01237) 479164

Date: 7 September 2018

TO:  THE CHAIR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE 
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

FULL COUNCIL MEETING

TOWN HALL - BRIDGE STREET, BIDEFORD, EX39 
2HS ON Monday 17 September 2018 at 6.30 pm

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the
aforementioned date and time

Head of Paid Service

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the 
meeting.

P R A Y E R S 
For those who wish to participate - Prayers will be held at 6.25 pm.

A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.  COUNCIL MINUTES (Pages 4 - 13)
Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 6 August.  

3.  PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 
15 minute period for public contributions



- 2 -

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being discussed.

5.  AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

6.  TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

7.  TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

8.  PETERS MARLAND SCHOOL 
To receive an update from Mr K Bennett of Peters Marland School.

9.  PROPOSED POLICE MERGER 
To receive an update from Superintendent Toby Davies, Devon & Cornwall Police, on 
the proposed Police merger.

10.  AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 14 - 22)
To receive the Annual Report of the Audit & Governance Committee from the 
Chairman, Councillor Hackett.

11.  COMPULSORY PURCHASE POLICY (Pages 23 - 32)
To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service.

12.  ALLOCATION OF SEATS (Pages 33 - 35)
To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service

13.  LEAD MEMBER FOR INTERNAL RESOURCES (Pages 36 - 37)
To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service.

14.  TRANSFORMING TORRIDGE PROGRAMME (STANDING ITEM) 
To receive a verbal update from the Head of Paid Service.

15.  PETITIONS 
To receive petitions (if any)

16.  NOTICES OF MOTION 
Written Notice of Motion from Councillor Cottle-Hunkin

Torridge recognises the need to invest in Calf St Play Area and supports the 
preparation of a project initiation document for consideration in the capital 
programme.



- 3 -

17.  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
The Chair to move:

“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972”

18.  PART II - (CLOSED SESSION) 

Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed.

Meeting Organiser:  Democratic Services Tel. 01237 428703



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Monday, 6 August 2018 - 6.30 pm

PRESENT: Councillor S Inch (Chair)
 
Councillors D McGeough, R Boughton, D Brenton, M Brown, 
P Christie, C Cottle-Hunkin, K Davis, G Dezart, A Eastman, 
Z Gregorek, P Hackett, J Hellyer, R Hicks, J Himan, D Hurley, 
T Inch, K James, T Johns, R Julian, J Langton-Lockton, N Laws, 
R Lock, J Morrish, I Parker, P Pennington, C Simmons, P Watson 
and J Whittaker

ALSO PRESENT: J Wallace, Head of Paid Service
S Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources)
J Hollis, Senior Solicitor
S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer
A Redwood, Property and Procurement Manager
M Richards, Democratic Services Officer

16.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors:  A Boyle, 
M Langmead, A Dart, R Hancock, B Boundy and K Carroll.

The Chair welcomed newly elected Councillor R Boughton to the meeting.

17.   COUNCIL MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor A Inch, seconded by Councillor R Lock and -

Resolved:   That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2018 be confirmed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to the following amendment:

Minute15 – Part II item  -  Following strong representations made by Councillor 
Pennington, Councillor Morrish left the room.

(Vote: For 27, Abstentions 2) 

Matters Arising:

Minute No 2 – Council minutes of the 14 May 2018

Minute 14(b)  -  to also include -  “Councillor Whittaker commented that Councillor
Hellyer was well equipped enough to join Audit & Governance Committee because

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2

 he is an Accountant”.

18.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

Jane Elliott, Diana Redfern and Liza Junkison spoke against the planning 
application for Westward Ho! Park, raising the following points:

 Westward Ho! was enjoying a period of growth.
 The village green had changed over the last 10 years and was much busier 

now with more community involvement and funds being raised by the 
community.  

 A committee looked after the park.
 The park was well used by mums and toddlers; the tennis courts were 

always busy despite there being no nets; the crazy golf course was very 
popular and the open space provided an opportunity for everybody to 
exercise.

 With open spaces ever decreasing, public land should be retained for 
community use.

 The plans for increased housing would put extra pressure on local services 
such as the Drs’ surgery.

Sarah Copp addressed the meeting seeking funding for the transformation of 
Torrington Park, advising that support had already been forthcoming from 
Councillor Saywell and James Jarroudi had been giving advice on grant availability.  
£10,000 had been pledged by the Youth Games Group and local fundraising 
events were being organised.  Consultations had been carried about what type of 
equipment to procure to replace the existing apparatus which is 21 years old.  It 
was hoped a refreshed park would encourage people into the town and boost the 
local economy.  Ms Copp’s daughter asked Members for their support as there was 
nowhere else for children to play.

Phil Hodson had presented a petition of over 4,000 signatures at the last meeting of 
the Full Council.  The petition had called for the transfer of Westward Ho! Park to 
Northam Town Council.  In accordance with the Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction Act 2009, receipt of the petition had been 
acknowledged but no date had been set for a Full Council debate.  This raised a 
concern that the planning application for the park had been submitted and a 
decision may be taken before Full Council had had the opportunity to hold a 
debate.

Councillor Christie raised a point of order, asking why the petition had not been 
tabled for discussion at this meeting.  The Senior Solicitor advised that the petition 
would be scheduled for debate by Full Council as soon as further background 
information was to hand.  The Constitution did not state a time frame for the petition 
to be presented for debate.  

Councillor Laws called for a special meeting of Full Council to be scheduled to 
debate the petition.  The Chair confirmed that he would discuss with officers and 
advise as soon as possible.  Councillor Brenton called a point of order, stating that 
the Chair could call a special meeting.  The Chair responded that he was 

Page 5



3

committed to having a special meeting and would advise of a date as soon as 
possible.

19.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

20.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

It was proposed by Councillor Whittaker, seconded by Councillor A Inch and –

Resolved:

That the Agenda as circulated be agreed.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

21.   TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

No correspondence or other business was brought forward.

22.   TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

Councillor Hicks left the meeting.

Councillor Morrish felt that the answer did not address all of his concerns and he 
explained his reasons.  Following clarification given by the Senior Solicitor and 
further background information, Councillor Morrish requested that the Leader be 
fully briefed and given the opportunity to express an opinion before the matter is 
progressed.  He would be happy to go along with the opinion of the Leader.

Councillor Hicks returned to the meeting.

23.   CONSTITUTION UPDATE 2018 

The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer presented the report, the purpose of which 
was for Member approval of the updates to the Constitution detailed on the 
attached Appendices to the report.  

The report was broken into 2 sections, the first section covering 2 more significant 
amendments:

Members Code of Conduct to include a requirement that newly elected Members 
undergo a DBS (Disclosure and Barring Service) check.

Members were asked to consider whether or not all newly elected Councillors

Page 6



4

should be asked to undergo DBS check.  The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
outlined the current legislative provision and advised that, although not a legal 
requirement, introduction of the proposal would promote public confidence.

Every decision on a planning application by the Plans Committee is subject to a 
recorded vote:

The Constitution currently provided that a recorded vote can be taken at any 
committee on any decision if 5 members of that Committee request it.  This 
amendment reflected the proposal that this provision is extended so that every 
planning application considered by the Plans Committee would automatically be 
subject to a recorded vote. The objective being to increase transparency.  

The remaining amendments were relatively minor in nature, based on updates 
which had arisen from observations during Committee meetings; discussions with 
Officers and Members; comparison with other local authorities and recognised best 
practice, together with amendments to Terms of Reference.

It was proposed by Councillor Hellyer, seconded by Councillor Pennington and – 

Resolved:

That the Members Code of Conduct be amended to include a requirement that 
newly elected Members undergo a DBS check.

(Vote: For 25, Against 4)

It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Langton-Lockton and – 

Resolved:

The Voting Scheme be amended to require every decision on a planning 
application by the Plans Committee to be subject to a recorded vote.

(Vote: For 21, Against 6, Abstentions 2)

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Christie and –

Resolved:

That clause A4.5 e) be removed.

(Vote: For 13, Against 9, Abstentions 6)

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Christie and –

Resolved:

That Part 4, Chapter 1, Rule 19 be extended to allow all Members to attend all 
meetings arranged or attended by other Councillors.

Page 7



5

(Vote: For 22, Against 7)

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Brenton and –

Resolved:

That the amendments in relation to the call-in of Community & Resources 
Committee decisions be approved.

(Vote: For 24, Against 5)

It was proposed by Councillor T Inch, seconded by Councillor Simmons and – 

Resolved:

That all other changes be adopted subject to the following amendments:

 Substitution Scheme - Paragraph A4.5 f) – removal of the words “or so 
requested”.

 Call-in of Community & Resources Committee Decisions – to remain as is
 The Terms of reference for the Local Development Framework Group 

remain as part of the constitution.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

24.   ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2017-18 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the report, and informed Members 
of the legal requirement for a report to be brought to Full Council in order to comply 
with the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management in the Public Sector.  
The report included the treasury management activity and actual prudential 
indicators for 2017-2018.

It was proposed by Councillor Watson, seconded by Councillor Lock and –

Resolved:

 That the Treasure Management Report for 2017/18 be noted
 That the actual Prudential Indicators for 2017/18 be noted

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

25.   MEMBERSHIP OF THE PROGRAMME BOARD 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that the purpose of the report was for 
Council to approve the appointment of two Members to sit on the Programme 
Board. 

It was proposed by Councillor Whittaker, seconded by Councillor S Inch and –

Page 8



6

Resolved:

 That if the Leader or Deputy Leader is also the Chair of Community & 
Resources Committee, then the chair of Audit & Governance Committee is 
the third Member.

 That Councillor Hicks be appointed as the fourth Member

(Vote:  For 26, Against 1, Abstentions 2)

26.   APPOINTMENT OF A NON-ELECTED REPRESENTATIVE AND 
INDEPENDENT PERSONS 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) invited Members to approve the appointment 
of a Non-Elected Representative to Audit and Governance Committee and two 
Independent Persons to work with the Monitoring Officer and Standards 
Committee.

He advised as follows:

 Roger Levick had been interviewed and had shown the necessary skills, 
experience, enthusiasm and commitment to fulfil the role of Non-Elected 
Representative to Audit and Governance Committee.

 One of the vacancies for Independent Person had been offered to Mr Martin 
Rawle following a successful recruitment exercise.

 A further interview had taken place for the second vacancy and Mr Steve 
Hammond had been selected.

During the ensuing discussion representations were made about the political 
neutrality of candidates.

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton and seconded by Councillor Julian –

That the recommendations be voted upon individually.

(Vote: For 8, Against 16, Abstentions 5)

The motion was lost.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett and seconded by Councillor Lock –

That:

The recommendations be taken en block.

(Vote: For 15, Against 8, Abstentions 5)

27.   TRANSFORMING TORRIDGE PROGRAMME - PROGRESS REPORT 

The purpose of the report, presented by the Strategic Manager (Resources), was to

Page 9



7

update Members on the progress on what is the most fundamental change 
programme Torridge had embarked on. 

Councillor Brenton referred to recycling of plastics – a lot of plastics are being 
rejected.   He asked that guidelines on what can and cannot be recycled are 
communicated to the public.   The Head of Paid Service to speak to the Waste and 
Recycling Manager and to report back.

Councillor Hicks left the room.

In response to questions, updates were given on Hatchmoor and the members’ 
Room.

Members noted the report.

Councillor Hicks returned to the meeting.

28.   PETITIONS 

There were no petitions.

29.   NOTICES OF MOTION 

There were no notices of motion.

30.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 

It was proposed by Councillor S Inch, seconded by Councillor T Inch and  -

Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the 
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

(Vote:  For 28, Against 1)

31.   PART II - (CLOSED SESSION) 

32.   STRATEGIC BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PLANNING WORKSHOP - 
OUTCOMES 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) updated Members on the outcomes discussed 
and proposed at the Strategic Business and Financial Planning Workshop held on 
19 July 2018.  

Councillor Watson suggested an additional proposal for CLT’s be included. It was 
agreed this be included in the recommendations as item (c) and all others to be 
moved down.

Page 10



8

Councillor Gregorek left the meeting.

During the lengthy discussion, each recommendation was taken individually as 
follows:

Recommendation a)
Noted for prioritisation

Recommendation b)
Noted for prioritisation

Recommendation c) – additional proposal agreed above (CLT’s)
For further investigation and a report to be brought back to Full Council.

Recommendation d)
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Lock that 
recommendation d) be accepted.

(Vote: For 21, Abstentions 4)  -  One Councillor out of room

Recommendation e)
Noted for prioritisation and the need for a detailed business case

Recommendation f) 
It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Brenton that 
recommendation f) (i) be accepted.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

Recommendation g)
Cost pressures and risks noted and that a further Business Case be developed and 
reported to Members with options.

Recommendation h)

When discussing this item, it was proposed by Councillor Laws, seconded by 
Councillor Brown that £50,000 be spent on a play park in Gt. Torrington.

(Vote:  For 6, Against 13, Abstentions 9)

Recommendation i)

A further update was reported by the Property & Procurement Manager detailing 
the reasons for the delay in the project and explaining the increase in costs of 
£0.435m to deliver the project.

It was proposed by Councillor Morrish, seconded by Councillor Laws –

Page 11



9

That:

Recommendation i) be accepted with the increased budget being allocated from
the Regeneration Capital Project Budget.

(Vote:  For 26, Against 1, abstentions 1)

Councillor Langton-Lockton left the meeting.

In accordance with the Constitution it was proposed by Councillor Whittaker, 
seconded by Councillor Davis and –

Resolved:   That in view of the fact 3 hours had elapsed since the meeting had 
commenced, the meeting should continue.

(Vote:  For 24, Against 1)

One member out of the room.

It was proposed by Councillor S Inch, seconded by Councillor Pennington that the 
following recommendations be noted.

(Vote:  For 24, Abstentions 2)

Recommendation j)
Noted the cost pressures and the potential need to report back.

Recommendation k)
Noted the prioritisation and a report due to be presented at Community & 
Resources Committee on 28 August.

Recommendation l)
Noted the prioritisation and change to original scheme.

Recommendation m)
Noted that a further report to be developed once relocated to single site.

33.   DELEGATION OF STATUTORY OFFICER ROLES 

The Head of Paid Service presented the report which sought Member approval to 
the designation of Statutory Officer roles.

An update was provided on the options being explored in the interim, and an 
explanation given on the reasoning as to why careful consideration was needed 
when looking to recruit.

It was proposed by Councillor Morrish, seconded by Councillor Davis that the 
recommendations in the report be refused.

Page 12



10

Following further discussion and an alternative proposal put forward, Councillor 
Morrish withdrew his proposal.

It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Simmons 
and –

Resolved:

That the recommendations detailed in the report be accepted, and the Senior 
Solicitor vacancy be advertised forthwith.

(Vote:  For 25, Against 2)

The Chair and Members thanked the following Officers who are leaving the Council and 
wished them well for the future:

Mr J Hollis, Senior Solicitor
D Thompson, Planning Performance Team Leader
A Champion, Project Manager

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 9.51 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 13



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Strategic Manager (Resources)
To: Full Council
Subject: ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Date: 17th September 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To enable Members to consider the annual report of the Audit & 
Governance Committee for the year ended July 2018.

1 INTRODUCTION

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has issued 
guidance to local authorities to help ensure that audit committees operate effectively. 
The guidance recommends that audit committees should report annually on how they 
have discharged their responsibilities.  

2 REPORT

A copy of the annual report of this Audit & Governance Committee is attached at 
Appendix 1.  A copy of the Audit & Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference is 
attached to the report as Appendix A, for information.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Risk Management
If the Audit & Governance Committee is ineffective or perceived to be ineffective then 
the Council may receive no assurance on whether its governance arrangements, risk 
management and control environment are operating adequately. This would lead to 
censure by the external auditors and any allegations of mismanagement and poor 
control could not be defended. This report sets out the work this committee has 
completed to help imbed sound and effective governance arrangements.

Page 14

Agenda Item 10



Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Compliance with CIPFA guidance follows best practice.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date – Councillor Philip Hackett – 1st August 2018

4. CONCLUSIONS
The report should be seen as a summary of the work completed by the Committee in 
the last year. 

The Committee fulfils a technical and challenging role, seeking assurance from officers 
and external experts that the risks and threats to the Council are identified and suitably 
addressed, and that the financial statements produced are accurate and reliable.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

Consider annual report of the Audit & Governance Committee.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of A&G Committee

Contact Officer: Steve Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources)

Background Papers: CIPFA - Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for
Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition)

Page 15



1

Annual Report 
of the 

Audit & Governance 
Committee

Year ending 31 July 2018

Page 16



2

1 INTRODUCTION

To provide Members of the Council with details of the work carried out by the Audit & 
Governance Committee during the year ended July 2018.  The report also details 
how the Audit & Governance Committee has fulfilled its Terms of Reference during 
this period.

2 BACKGROUND

The Audit & Governance Committee provides assurance of the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the associated control environment; provides scrutiny 
of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects 
the authority’s exposure to risk and weaknesses in the control environment, and 
oversees the financial reporting process

The Committee’s specific powers and duties are set out in Part 3 of the Constitution 
and agreed each year at the Annual General Meeting.  A copy of the Terms of 
Reference is attached at Appendix A for information.  

Audit Committees are a key component of corporate governance and provide an 
important source of assurance about the organisation’s arrangements for managing 
risk, maintaining an effective control environment, and reporting on financial and 
other performance.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) issued guidance 
to local authorities to help ensure that Audit Committees are operating effectively1.  
The guidance recommends that audit committees should report annually on how 
they have discharged their responsibilities.  

3 WORK UNDERTAKEN AND FINDINGS

The Audit Committee has met on five occasions in the year since 1 August 2017, in 
accordance with its Programme of Work. 

During this period, the Committee has assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s risk management arrangements, control environment and associated 
counter fraud arrangements through regular reports from officers, the internal 
auditors Devon Audit Partnership (DAP), and the external auditors, Grant Thornton 
(GT).  The Committee has sought assurance that action has been taken, or is 
otherwise planned, by management to address any risk related issues that have 
been identified by the auditors during this period.  The Committee has also sought to 
ensure that effective relationships continue to be maintained between the internal 
and external auditors, and between the auditors and management.  

1 CIPFA – Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police, 2018

Page 17



3

The Committee has continued to focus its attention on a number of emerging issues 
and priorities including; data protection (GDPR), information and cyber security and 
Transforming Torridge.

The Audit & Governance Committee is satisfied that the Council has maintained an 
adequate and effective control framework through the period covered by this report.  

The specific work undertaken by the Committee is set out below.  

Financial Statements

Considered and approved the Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 (in August 2017) 
and 2017/18 (in July 2018) of the Council. 

Signed the ‘letter of representation’ to confirm that the Statement of Accounts give a 
true and fair view of the Council financial position of Torridge District Council as of 
31st March 2018 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended in 
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom.

Received and considered proposed changes to the timetable for the preparation and 
approval of the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement.  For the 
2017/18 financial year onwards, the Council is required to produce the annual 
accounts and governance statement by 31 May (one month earlier than previously) 
and to have published the audited and approved accounts and governance 
statement by 31 July (two months earlier than previously).  This change to the 
timetable has been challenging for both the Council and GT.  The Committee was 
therefore interested to understand the planned changes to approach that were 
considered necessary to meet the accelerated timetable. 

Audit Activity:  External Audit

Received and considered the external auditor’s annual audit letter in respect of the 
2016/17 audit year.  The Committee was pleased to note that the external auditors 
(GT) had not raised any significant issues and had given an unqualified audit 
opinion.  GT had also issued an unqualified value for money conclusion.

Received and considered the external auditor’s plan for the audit of the 2017/18 
financial statements and the review of the Council’s arrangements for securing value 
for money; 

Received and considered updates on the interim results of GT’s work in relation to 
the audit of the 2017/18 financial statements of the Council. The Committee was 
pleased to note that GT had not raised any significant issues with the 2017/18 
annual accounts, provided an unqualified audit opinion and had also issued an 
unqualified value for money conclusion.  Improvements made from previous years 
was also reported.

Page 18



4

Audit Activity:  Internal Audit

Continued to oversee the internal audit arrangements for the Council.  This has 
included approving the Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Strategy;

Received and considered the results of internal audit work performed in respect of 
the 2017/18 agreed plan. Monitored the progress made by management during the 
period to address identified control weaknesses;

Received and approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.  The plan ensures that 
limited internal audit resources are prioritised towards those systems and areas 
which are considered to be the highest risk or which contribute most to the 
achievement of the Council’s corporate objectives;

Monitored the delivery of the annual Internal Audit plans through regular update 
reports presented by the Head of Devon Audit Partnership;

Considered the Council’s overall counter fraud arrangements in the light of emerging 
risks (both national and local); 

Received and considered the Annual Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
for 2017/18 which provided an overall opinion on the Council’s control environment. 
The Head of DAP confirmed that the Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control provided substantial assurance. 

Regulatory Framework:  Risk Management

Continued to oversee the Council’s risk management arrangements and strategy;

Reviewed the progress made by the Council to identify and address corporate risks.  
This included consideration of the updated Corporate Risk Register at each meeting.  
The Committee recognised that many of the risks identified were complex in nature 
and/or had potentially significant financial implications.

  
Regulatory Framework:  Corporate Governance

Considered and approved the Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18 of the 
Council.  The Statement had been updated so that it aligned with the new corporate 
governance principles and framework. The Committee also reviewed and agreed an 
updated Code of Governance and reviewed elements of the supporting database 
which evidences how the Council meets the governance principles.

Received a report outlining the progress made to meet the new Data Protection 
Regulations (2017).  The Committee noted that progress continues to be made in 
this area.

Page 19



5

Regulatory Framework:  Other

Received an inspection report carried out by the Investigatory Powers 
Commissioner’s Office. The Senior Solicitor confirmed that the surveillance inspector 
had congratulated the Council on the impressive approach it has taken.

Received the results of a self assessment against the CIPFA code of practice on 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and corruption. Members noted that there are effective 
and appropriate processes in place to prevent, detect and investigate instances of 
fraud and corruption.

Received the results of a self assessment undertaken by DAP on the effectiveness 
of Torridge’s A&G Committee.

Other work

The Chair attended various training and awareness events during the year, including 
a seminar run by DAP & SWAP at Buckfast Abbey. The event was also attended by 
audit committee members from other neighbouring councils which helped to provide 
an opportunity to compare practices and share knowledge;  

The Chair attended the PSAA’s Local Audit Quality Forum event in April 2018 which 
was attended by over 150 Chairs of Audit Committees and Directors of Finance.

Reviewed the progress which had been made by officers to address other issues 
raised at meetings of the Committee;

Reviewed the Committee’s Terms of Reference.  We concluded that no changes 
were required.

We welcomed a new member to the Committee this year (Councillor Hellyer, who 
also takes on the role of vice Chair) but were sad to lose the services of Cllr 
Robinson, Cllr Boundy and our independent member Alistair Ashworth. 

4 HAVE WE “ADDED VALUE” TO TORRIDGE COUNCIL?

The Committee fulfils a technical and challenging role, seeking assurance from 
officers and external experts that the risks and threats to the council are identified 
and suitably addressed, and that the financial statements produced are accurate and 
reliable. It is in seeking this assurance that the Committee “adds value” to the rest of 
Torridge Council.

Councillor Philip Hackett
Chairman of the Audit & Governance Committee

Page 20



6

APPENDIX A

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (from the Constitution)
 
 
Statement of Purpose 
 
The purpose of an audit & governance committee is to provide assurance of the 
adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control 
environment, scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to 
the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control 
environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process. 
 
Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibilities 
 
The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee shall be responsible for:- 
 
1.  Audit Activity 
 
a)  To consider the Internal Audit Manager’s annual report and opinion, and a 
summary of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it 
can give over the Council’s corporate governance arrangements; 
b)  To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested; 
c)  To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the 
providers of internal audit services; 
d)  To consider a report from internal audit on agreed recommendations not 
implemented within a reasonable timescale; 
e)  To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, other relevant reports, and the 
report to those charged with governance; 
f)  To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor; 
g)  To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives 
value for money; 
h)  To liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the council’s 
external auditor; 
i)  To commission work from internal and external audit. 
 
2.  Regulatory Framework 
 
a)  To maintain an overview of the Council’s constitution in respect of contract 
procedure rules, financial procedure rules and codes of conduct and behaviour; 
b)  To review any issue referred to it by the Head of Paid Service or a director, or any 
Council body; 
c)  To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and 
corporate governance in the council; 
d)  To monitor council policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’ and the anti-fraud and 
anti-corruption strategy and the council’s complaints process; 
e)  To approve and adopt the Council’s Annual Governance Statement or Statement 
on Internal Control. 

 

Page 21



7

f)  To consider the council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice; 
g)  To consider the council’s compliance with its own and other published standards 
and controls. 

 
3.  Accounts 
 
a)  To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to 
consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need 
to be brought to the attention of the council;
 b)  To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 
issues arising from the audit of accounts. 

 
Composition & Administration 
 
Composition 
 
1.  The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee shall be made up of Seven (7) 
members. 
 
2.  Membership of the Council’s Audit & Governance Committee shall be made up as 
follows:- 
 
a)  Six (6) District Councillors; and 
b)  One (1) Independent/Non-Elected Representative. 

3.  The quorum shall be Four (4). 

Administration 
 
The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee and its members shall:- 
 
a)  Be independent of the Council’s scrutiny function and Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees;
b)  Have clear reporting lines and rights of access to other committees/functions, for 
example scrutiny and service committees, corporate risk management and other 
strategic groups; 
c)  Meet regularly – about five times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to 
be considered in private and those to be considered in public; 
d)  Meet privately and separately with the external auditor and audit manager; 
e)  Include as regular attendees, the chief finance officer or deputy, the audit 
manager and appointed external auditor and relationship manager. Other attendees 
may include the Monitoring Officer, Head of Paid Service and Head of Finance. 
These officers should also have access to the committee, or chair, as required; 
f)  Have the right to call any other officers or agencies as required; 
g) Be properly trained to fulfil their role

Page 22



REPORT OF Planning and Economy Manager
To: Full Council
Subject: Adoption of Compulsory Purchase Policy 
Date: 17 September 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To request full Council consider a draft Compulsory Purchase Policy for adoption.

1. INTRODUCTION

Compulsory purchase is a legal process that allows certain public bodies, including councils, 
to acquire land for a specific purpose if a landowner is not willing to sell by agreement. 
Torridge District Council does not currently have a policy setting out its approach to 
compulsory purchase, but following consideration of the merits of having such a policy, the 
Council’s Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) Committee has recommended full Council consider 
adoption of a compulsory purchase policy. 

2. REPORT

At its meeting of 7 August 2018, the Overview and Scrutiny (Internal) Committee considered 
the merits of adopting a compulsory purchase policy in general terms, and also considered a 
draft policy tabled at the meeting. The Committee’s view was that it could be very beneficial 
for the Council to have a compulsory purchase process in place as a matter of course, so 
that the process could be utilised in future if necessary to progress any specific schemes. 
The Process is set out in Appendix B.

The draft policy considered by the Committee is attached at Appendix A to this report. The 
Committee was minded to include particular reference at paragraph 20 of the draft policy to 
regular reviews of the implementation of any compulsory purchase process due to the 
potentially significant impact it may have on individuals and organisations involved or 
affected by the process. The policy sets out the general approach to be taken by the 
Council, while the specific legal and financial aspects of any particular compulsory purchase 
would depend on the circumstances of the specific case. 

Full Council is requested to review the draft policy with a view to adopting it subject to any 
amendments proposed. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
No specific legal implications arise from the adoption of a compulsory purchase policy. 
Compulsory purchase however is a very complicated process and there are a number of 
legal issues arising from any use of the power. Specific legal advice should be taken in 
relation to each scheme where it is considered compulsory purchase may be an option.

Financial Implications
No specific financial implications arise from the adoption of a compulsory purchase policy. 
Specific financial advice should be taken in relation to each scheme where it is considered 
compulsory purchase may be an option, as there are likely to be significant costs incurred. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 11



Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
The adoption of an agreed approach to compulsory purchase will assist in managing risk 
associated with the process, alongside specific advice on each particular use of the powers.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Adoption of a compulsory purchase policy can assist the Council in achieving its strategic 
objectives if it is unable to acquire land to progress a specific scheme.

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Lead member:

4. CONCLUSIONS

Full Council is requested to consider the adoption of the draft Compulsory Purchase Policy 
attached at Appendix A. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Full Council adopt the draft Compulsory Purchase Policy attached at Appendix A, 
subject to any amendments. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) Committee

Head of Paid Service, S151 Officer 

Contact Officer:  

Background Papers:

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



REPORT OF Head of Paid Service
To: Full Council
Subject: Committee Seat Allocation
Date: 17 September 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

For Full Council to agree the numbers of Seats on the Committees allocated to each of the
Political Groups

1. INTRODUCTION

Following the bye-election for the Hartland & Bradworthy Ward and the review of political 
balance the number of seats on each of the Council’s Committees has been amended.

2. REPORT

Appendix A to this report shows the agreed membership on the Council’s Committees.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
This report ensures compliance with current legislation

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications regarding this proposal

Human Resources Implications
There are no Human Resource implications regarding this proposal

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report ensures compliance with the Council’s constitution.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
The Leader agrees with this recommendation

4. CONCLUSIONS

The relevant Group Leaders whose numbers have changed have agreed the political 
balance on the Council’s Committees.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Full Council agree the numbers of Seats on the Committees allocated to each of the

Page 33

Agenda Item 12



Political Groups as set out in Appendix 1

Page 34



Committee Seats Allocation (from July 2018 following Hartland election)

Scrutiny 
Internal

Scrutiny 
External Joint Crem

Community & 
Resources Audit Plans Licensing Standards

9 9 5 12 6 9 10 7 67

Group No. of Cllrs % of seats Totals
Conservative 20 55.56% 5.00 5.00 2.78 6.67 3.33 5.00 5.56 3.89 37.22

5 5 3 7 3 5 5 4 37
Non Aligned 3 8.33% 0.75 0.75 0.42 1.00 0.50 0.75 0.83 0.58 5.58

1 1 0 1 1 1 1 0 6
UKIP 3 8.33% 0.75 0.75 0.42 1.00 0.50 0.75 0.83 0.58 5.58

0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 5
Independent 8 22.22% 2.00 2.00 1.11 2.67 1.33 2.00 2.22 1.56 14.89

2 2 1 3 1 2 2 2 15
Lib Dem 2 5.56% 0.50 0.50 0.28 0.67 0.33 0.50 0.56 0.39 3.72

1 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 4
9 9 5 12 6 9 10 7

36 100% Ok Ok Ok Ok Ok Ok Ok Ok 67

P
age 35



REPORT OF Head of Paid Service
To: Full Council
Subject: Lead Member for Internal Resources
Date: 17 September 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

For Full Council to review the need for a Lead Member for Internal Resources

1. INTRODUCTION

Following the resignation of Councillor Laws the Council currently has a vacancy for the 
Lead Member of Internal Resources.  

2. REPORT

During the discussion regarding the process to fill the vacancy for the Lead Member for 
Internal Resources Councillor Hurley who is currently the Lead Member for Customer 
Services indicated that there was a considerable overlap between these two Lead Member 
roles.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
This report ensures compliance with the Council’s Constitution

Financial Implications
There are no additional financial implications regarding this proposal

Human Resources Implications
There are no Human Resource implications regarding this proposal

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report ensures compliance with the Council’s constitution.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
The Leader has been involved in this process.

4. CONCLUSIONS

It is the responsibility of Full Council to appoint the Lead Member and to agree the Lead 
Member roles. It is suggested that to help reduce duplication that two Lead Member roles 
are combined.

Page 36

Agenda Item 13



5. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Full Council agree that:

 The Lead Member for Internal Resources role and the Lead Member for Customer 
Services role be combined.

 That Councillor Hurley become the Lead Member for Customer Services & Internal 
Resources

Page 37


	Agenda
	2 Council Minutes
	10 Audit & Governance Committee Annual Report
	AG annual report 2018

	11 Compulsory Purchase Policy
	Appendix B cpo_process

	12 Allocation of Seats
	Full council report committee seat allocation for July 2018 following byelection Appendix 1

	13 Lead Member for Internal Resources

